
 

 

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Riddle Point Shelter House 

June 22, 2019 

10:00 p.m. 

 

The June 22nd, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting of the Lake Lemon Conservancy District was 

held at the Riddle Point Park Shelter House and was called to order by Chairman Pam Dugan at 10:00 

AM. 

  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman-Pam Dugan, Vice-Chairman Mary Jane Brown, 

Treasurer Mike Blackwell, Michael Klitzing, Les Wadzinski, Lora Schell, Debra Ladyman.  ALSO 

PRESENT: Adam Casey, District Manager; Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor; and LLCD Freeholders 

(see attached sign-in sheet). 

 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (Dugan)               

 

II. Approval of April 25, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (Dugan) 

 

a. Ladyman requested it be noted that she called in to the April 25th Meeting. 

 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE APRIL 25, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES.  BROWN 

SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

III. Indiana University Water Testing – Sarah Powers 

a. Powers highlighted the results from the 2018 water testing, see attached 

b. Powers presented the 2019/2020 water testing agreement, see attached 

c. Casey will have further discussion with Powers regarding timing of tests and additional 

testing needs. 

 

LADYMAN MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE 2019/2020 WATER TESTING AGREEMENT WITH INDIANA 

UNIVERSITY. BROWN SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYE’S”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

  

 

IV. Treasurer’s Report (Blackwell) 

 

a. April Budget Highlights 

i. April Income: $24,033.41 

ii. April Expenditures: $45,573.22 



b. May Budget Highlights 

i. May Income: $60,955.00 

ii. May Expenditures: $41,506.32 

 

c. April and May Report of Claims: Approval of Allowance of Vouchers 

 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE ALLOWANCE OF VOUCHERS FOR APRIL AND MAY 2019. 

SCHELL SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

d. Blackwell introduced the proposed budget for 2020, see attached 

 

 

 

 

V. Manager’s Report (Casey) 

 

a. Casey updated the board on the Barge operations for the season. 

i. The dredging staff have dug out 1,489 yards from zone 125. 

b. Casey presented that Aquatic Control treated 36 acres of submerged vegetation on 

Friday June 14th at a cost of $28,227.00 

c. Casey presented a plan to create a digital buoy map for a more standard set of locations 

to place the buoys around the lake 

d. Casey discussed with Board members potential fee increases and limits on increases. 

e. Casey updated the board on a timeline for the fireworks 

i. Fireworks will begin at dusk 

ii. The beach will be closed at 4pm at which point the gatehouse will charge a 

$10.00 special event fee per vehicle 

 

 

VI. Sediment Management Project (Casey) 

a. Casey updated the board on Christopher Burke’s activities 

i. Burke will be in mid-July to collect the data from the sampling spots  

b. Casey discussed the Financial Impact Report from Baker Tilly, see attached 

 

VII. Strategic Planning Committee: Update (Brown) 

a. Brown gave an update on the Monroe and Brown county Community funds 

i. Brown discussed the need for more board involvement in planning and direction 

and for the board to have more oversight when it comes to the fundraisers.  

b. Brown presented and requested approval of a Capital Campaign Training by Johnson, 
Grossnickle and Associates, see attached. 

 



 

    

DUGAN MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL CAMPAIGN TRAINING WITH

JOHNSON, GROSSNICKELE AND ASSOCIATES. LADYMAN SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”.  

THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

c. The Lemon-Aid Days 4th of July Extravaganza will feature: 

i. 

 

Friday July 5th, 10:00am Wine and Canvas event, 6:00pm Dock decorating 
contest Judging 

ii. Saturday July 6th, 12:00pm Boat Parade, 1:30-4:30pm Family fun carnival 

 

 

 

 

VIII. Public Comment (Dugan) 

a. Bob Madden, former District Manager of LLCD, brought the death of former Board 

Member Bill Cobb to the board’s attention.  

 

IX. New Business/ Correspondence for Future Agenda (Dugan) 

a.  The Next Board Meeting will take place on July 20th, 2019, 10:00 am, at the Riddle 

Point Shelter House 

 

X. Adjournment 

 

BROWN MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE JUNE 22ND, 2019 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AT 

11:30 A.M.  SCHELL SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”.  THE MOTION CARRIED.  MEETING 

ADJOURNED. 

  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:  

Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor 







 

 

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting 

City of Bloomington Utilities Department 

June 22, 2019 

10:00 a.m. 
 

AGENDA 
  
I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (PD) 

 

II. Approval of April 25, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (PD) 

 

III. Indiana University Water Testing- Sarah Powers 

A. 2018 Results 

B. 2019/2020 testing agreement 

 

IV. Treasurer’s Report                                                                                                     (MB) 

A. April & May Financial Highlights 

B. Report of Claims Approval for April & May  2019 

C. Introduction: 2020 Proposed Budget 

 

V. Manager’s Report                                                                                                      (AC)   

A. Dredging and Stabilization  

B. Vegetation Control 

C. Lake Safety and Signage  

D. Communication and Advertising 

E. Fireworks Update 

 

VI. Sediment Management Project                                                                                 (AC) 

A. Sediment Transport Study: Update 

B. Financial- Discussion on Financial Impact Report from Baker Tilly 

 

VII. Strategic Planning Committee: Update (MJB) 

A. Charitable Giving- Enhancement Fund Update 

B. Johnson, Grossnickel and Associates- Capital Campaign Training- Agreement 

C. Lemon-Aid Days- Events Update 

D. General Update 

 

VIII. Public Comment (PD) 

 

IX. New Business / Correspondence for Future Agenda (PD)  

A. Next LLCD Board Meeting: July 20, 2019; 10:00 AM; 

    

 

X. Adjournment  (PD)   

 
 
THE ANNUAL PICNIC WILL OCCUR AFTER THE ADJOURNMENT OF THE JUNE 22, 2019 BOARD MEETING 

   

   

    



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Pam Dugan, Chairman 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject April, 25 2019 Board Meeting Minutes  

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019  

Summary A draft of the minutes for the April 25, 2019 Board 
Meeting minutes is provided for comment, corrections,

additions, or deletions. 

Staff Recommendation Approval of the April 25th , Board meeting minutes  

 



 

 

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting 

City of Bloomington Utilities Building 

April 25, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 

 

The April 25th, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting of the Lake Lemon Conservancy District was 

held at the City of Bloomington Utilities Building and was called to order by Chairman Pam Dugan at 

6:00 PM. 

  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman-Pam Dugan, Vice-Chairman Mary Jane Brown, 

Treasurer Mike Blackwell, Michael Klitzing, Les Wadzinski, Lora Schell.  ALSO PRESENT: Adam Casey, 

District Manager; Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor; and LLCD Freeholders (see attached sign-in 

sheet). NOT PRESENT: Debra Ladyman. 

 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (Dugan)               

 

II. Approval of March 28, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (Dugan) 

 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 28, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES.  SCHELL 

SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

III. Treasurer’s Report (Blackwell) 

 

a. March Budget Highlights 

i. March Income: $6,946.00 

ii. March Expenditures: $31,092.37 

 

b. March Report of Claims: Approval of Allowance of Vouchers 

 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE ALLOWANCE OF VOUCHERS FOR MARCH 2019. BROWN 

SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

c. Blackwell proposed increasing our Cumulative Maintenance Fund budget from 

$5,000.00 to $7,500.00. 

 

BROWN MOTIONED TO APPROVE AN INCREASE IN THE CUMULATIVE MAINTENANCE FUND BUDGET 

FROM $5,000.00 TO $7,500.00. KLITZING SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED 

 

 



IV. Manager’s Report (Casey) 

 

a. Casey updated the board on the Barge operations for the season. 

i. The dredging staff have officially made it out on the water and have started 

digging in zone 125. 

 

 

V. Sediment Management Project (Casey) 

a. Casey and the Lake Health Task group met with Christopher Burke engineering to 

discuss the Sediment Transport Study. 

i. Due to sampling restraints during high flow events, the study has been revised 

to utilize a new bathymetric study and more substantial modeling at the same 

cost. 

b. Casey requested approval for the new Sediment Transport Study approach with 

Christopher Burke. 

 

BLACKWELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE NEW APPROACH TO THE SEDIMENT TRANSPORT STUDY. 

KLITZING SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

c. Umbaugh will meet again at the LLCD office Tuesday April 2nd, 2019 at 2pm to further 

discuss our bonding options. 

 

VI. Strategic Planning Committee: Update (Brown) 

a. Fundraising update: 

i. Brown discussed the need for more board involvement in planning and direction 

and for the board to have more oversight when it comes to the fundraisers.This 

discussion was tabled. 

b. Brown presented the board with a mock “straw man” agenda from the March Board 

meeting where the board would implement a consent agenda and stay on a stricter time 

schedule for each topic discussed. 

i. This would allow for the restructuring of committees within the board, and 

more board members to be involved and informed. This would also allow for 

more efficient and possibly less time consuming meetings. 

 

VII. Public Comment (Dugan) 

 

VIII. New Business/ Correspondence for Future Agenda (Dugan) 

a. The Next Board Meeting will take place on May 23th, 2019, 6:00 pm, at the City of 

Bloomington Utilities Building 

 

IX. Adjournment 



 

BLACKWELL MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE APRIL 25TH, 2019 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AT 7:49 P.M.  BROWN SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”.  THE MOTION CARRIED.  

MEETING ADJOURNED. 

  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:  

Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor 



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Sarah Powers, Indiana University 

Action Requested N/A 

Item/Subject 2018 Water Testing results 

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019 

Summary Sarah Power, Indiana University, will present the 
findings of the 2018 Lake Lemon water testing. 

Staff Recommendation N/A 

 



 
 

LAKE LEMON MONITORING PROGRAM 

2018 Results Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

 

Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

Sarah Powers  

School of Public & Environmental Affairs 

Indiana University 

Bloomington, Indiana 47405 

 

 

 



 
 

Lake Lemon 2018 Water Monitoring Overview 
 
The Lake Lemon Conservancy District (LLCD) began contracting Indiana University in 1998 to monitor water quality of 
the lake and incoming tributaries.  Figure 1 shows the sampling locations for Lake Lemon and the tributaries in 2018.  
IU has provided full sampling methods to the LLCD.  
 

 
Figure 1.  Sampling locations for the Lake Lemon Water Monitoring Program. 

 

 

  



 
 

Lake Lemon 2018 Summary Results 
 
Temperature and Dissolved Oxygen IU collected a full profile of temperature and dissolved oxygen from one meter 
depth increments through the water column at Riddle and Reed Point. The temperature profile illustrates the 
seasonal variation in water temperature and thermal stratification that occurs as the surface water warms.  The 
upper 3 meters of water remained oxygenated during all four sampling events at Riddle Point (Figure 1).  The August 
dissolved oxygen concentrations averaged 8.7 mg/L in the epilimnion, a slight increase of approximately 0.5 mg/L 
respectively from the sample collected during July of 2018.  Anoxic conditions develop below 3 meters depth as 
organic matter on the lake bottom creates biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) that breaks down the organic matter 
consuming available oxygen.  Stratification of the surface water reduces mixing of oxygen in the deeper water. The 
shallow depth of Reed Point and lake turbulence keep this area of the lake well mixed and oxygenated (Figure 2).   
 

 
 
Figure 1. Temperature and dissolved oxygen profiles from all sample dates in from Indiana University at Riddle Point in 
2018. 

 

Figure 2. Temperature and dissolved oxygen profiles from all sample dates in from Indiana University at Reed Point in 
2018. 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

De
pt

h 
(m

)

mg/L and °C

Lake Lemon Temperature and Dissolved Oxygen Profiles - Riddle Point

Temp - 5/24/18

DO - 5/24/18

Temp - 6/19/18

DO - 6/19/18

Temp - 8/7/18

DO - 8/7/18

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

De
pt

h 
(m

)

mg/L and °C

Lake Lemon Temperature and Dissolved Oxygen Profiles - Reed Point

Temp - 5/24/18

DO - 5/24/18

Temp - 6/19/18

DO - 6/19/18

Temp - 8/7/18

DO - 8/7/18



 
 

Water Quality Summary IU collected epilimnion samples from the top 2 meters of the water column and 
hypolimnion at 6 meters depth (19.7 ft) at Riddle Point. IU collected samples in the epilimnion only at Reed 
Point.  
 
 
Table 1. Water Quality Characteristics of Lake Lemon – Riddle Point and Reed Point, 5/24/2018. 

  
Parameter 

Riddle Reed 

Epilimnion Hypolimnion Epilimnion 

Secchi (m) 1.7 -- 0.9 

Light trans @ 3' (%) 31 -- 5 

1% Light Level (ft) 13.4 -- 8.2 

% Water Column Oxic 71 -- 100 

pH 7.6 6.84 7.45 

Conductivity (uS/cm)) 163.5 136.8 -- 

Alkalinity (mg/L) 52 55 59 

Total Suspended Solids (mg/L) 5.19 12.92 11.94 

Nitrate (mg/L) 0.090 0.090 0.094 

Ammonia (mg/L) 0.032 0.018 0.027 

Total Nitrogen (mg/L) -- -- -- 

Orthophosphate (mg/L) 0.006 0.005 0.005 

Total Phosphorus (mg/L) -- 0.027 -- 

Chlorophyll-a (ug/L) 5.20 -- 7.42 

Plankton (Cells/ml) 3,409 -- 2,469 
Plankton (#/L) 1,312,123 -- 1,176,853 
Blue-green dominance NU (%) 9 -- 2 
Blue-green dominance – cells/ml (%) 51  -- 21 

* Method Detection Limit  
  



 
 

Table 2. Water Quality Characteristics of Lake Lemon – Riddle Point and Reed Point, 6/19/18. 

  
Parameter 

Riddle Reed 

Epilimnion Hypolimnion Epilimnion 

Secchi (m) 1.25 -- 0.65 

Light trans @ 3' (%) 3.396 -- 10.571 

1% Light Level (ft) 14.4 -- 9.5 

% Water Column Oxic 71 -- 100 

pH 7.9 7.0 7.6 

Conductivity (uS/cm) 173.4 194.5 185.6 

Alkalinity (mg/L) 62 75 69 

Total Suspended Solids (mg/L) -- -- -- 

Nitrate (mg/L) 0.073 0.029 0.069 

Ammonia (mg/L) 0.031 0.322 0.066 

Total Nitrogen (mg/L) 1.089 1.153 0.356 

Orthophosphate (mg/L) 0.005 0.017 0.007 

Total Phosphorus (mg/L) 0.032 0.078 0.026 

Chlorophyll-a (ug/L) 7.96 -- 12.37 

Plankton (Cells/ml) 13,399 -- 21,204 

Plankton (#/L) 1,447,393 -- 2,110,218 

Blue-green dominance NU (%) 78 -- 71 

Blue-green dominance – cells/ml (%) 97 -- 92 

* Method Detection Limit  



 
 

Table 3. Water Quality Characteristics of Lake Lemon – Riddle Point and Reed Point, 8/07/18. 

  
Parameter 

Riddle Reed 

Epilimnion Hypolimnion Epilimnion 

Secchi (m) 0.6 -- 0.55 

Light trans @ 3' (%) 8.67 -- 3.57 

1% Light Level (ft) 8.2 -- 5.58 

% Water Column Oxic 71 -- 100 

pH 8 7.4 7.6 

Conductivity (uS/cm)) 148.8 153.9 158 

Alkalinity (mg/L) 86 91 77 

Total Suspended Solids (mg/L) -- -- -- 

Nitrate (mg/L) -- -- -- 

Ammonia (mg/L) 0.014 0.014 0.014 

Total Nitrogen (mg/L) 0.445 0.839 0.782 

Orthophosphate (mg/L) 0.01 0.054 0.011 

Total Phosphorus (mg/L) 0.016 0.035 0.04 

Chlorophyll-a (ug/L) 27.21 -- 22.27 

Plankton (Cells/ml) 26,330 -- 21,677 

Plankton (#/L) 3,530,558 -- 2,881,260 

Blue-green dominance NU (%) 81 -- 73 

Blue-green dominance – cells/ml (%) 96 -- 93 

* Method Detection Limit 
  



 
 

Chlorophyll-a, which is a measure of the primary pigment in algae, is a direct measure of algal productivity.  In the 
integrated samples from the surface to the 2-meter depth, the chlorophyll-a concentrations ranged from 5.20 μg/L in 
May to 27.21 μg/L in August.  Chlorophyll-a concentrations >7 µg/L are indicative of eutrophic lake conditions. Overall, 
we see a seasonal pattern of nutrient increase by late summer as total phosphorous concentrations increase, which is 
characteristic of Lake Lemon.  This pattern is mirrored by increases in chlorophyll-a concentrations.  This suggests that 
conditions exist for increasing growth of algae (Figure 3 and 4). 

 

Figure 3.  Seasonal changes in total phosphorus, total suspended solids, and chlorophyll-a in the surface waters 
(epilimnion) at Riddle Point in Lake Lemon in 2018.   

 

Figure 4. Seasonal changes in total phosphorus, total suspended solids, and chlorophyll-a in the surface waters (epilimnion) 
at Reed Point in Lake Lemon in 2018.    

0

0.005

0.01

0.015

0.02

0.025

0.03

0.035

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

5/18/18 6/7/18 6/27/18 7/17/18 8/6/18

TP
 (m

g/
L)

Ch
l-a

 (u
g/

L)
, T

SS
 (m

g/
L)

Date

Seasonal Changes - Riddle Point Epilimnion

TSS - epi (mg/L) Chlorophyll a (ug/L)

Chl-a Eutrophic Threshold Total Phos - epi (mg/L)

TP Eutrphic Threshold

0
0.005
0.01
0.015
0.02
0.025
0.03
0.035
0.04
0.045

0

5

10

15

20

25

5/18/18 6/7/18 6/27/18 7/17/18 8/6/18

TP
 (m

g/
L)

Ch
l-a

 (u
g/

L)
, T

SS
 (m

g/
L)

Date

Seasonal Changes - Reed Point Epilimnion

TSS - epi (mg/L) Chlorophyll a (ug/L)

Chl-a Eutrophic Threshold Total Phos - epi (mg/L)

TP Eutrphic Threshold



 
 

Tributary Samples IU collected turbidity and E. coli in 2018. The state standard for full body contact and recreation is 
200 colonies per 100mls.  

Table 4. Turbidity and E. coli for 2018.  

 E. coli 
(#/100 mls) 

E. coli 
(#/100 mls) 

E. coli 
(#/100 mls) 

Turbidity 
(NTU) 

Turbidity 
(NTU) 

Turbidity 
(NTU) 

  5/24/18 

 

6/14/18 

(Storm) 

8/7/18 

 

5/24/18 

 

6/14/18 

(Storm) 

8/7/18 

 

Chitwood #1 790 4,000 300 12.5 17.9 32.1 

Chitwood #2 92 1,100 300 8.1 13.4 12.3 

Chitwood Channel 800 2,100 700 10.9 52.1 37 

Chitwood Stream 550 3,300 10,900 3.73 202 61.2 

Beanblossom Creek 68 5,100 3,000 4.09 32 6.91 

Bear Creek 350 8,800 7,800 5.2 110 102 

Knobb Creek  630 10,000 10,400 37.5 220 51.8 

*The stream flowing into the Chitwood area from across the road was very low during August sample event. 

In order to help identify the problem areas for bacteria and sediment, IU has added multiple sampling sites (Figure 5).  
The LLCD and IU selected sites in an attempt to address concerns of citizens and to identify solutions for bacteria 
challenges. Storm sample collection on 6/14/2018 is to demonstrate possible worst-case scenarios for bacteria.  
These concentrations are well over full body contact standards during many sampling events.  

 

Figure 5.  Sampling locations for the Lake Lemon Water Monitoring Program for the Chitwood area for 2017 and 2018.



 
 

The LLCD Board asked us to look at the historical bacteria trends.  The results from sampling events at the Chitwood 
sites show the water exceeds EPA standards for recreation over 50% of the time, for E. coli from 2015-2018 (Figure 6).   

 
 
Figure 6. Changes in Fecal Coliform and E. coli concentrations in Chitwood area as part of the Lake Lemon watershed 
from 1998 to 2018.  Note that 17 of the 39 events in 2017 and 2018 exceeded 200 CFU/100 mLs.  (Two outliers have been 
removed for display purposes).   
 
  

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

3/11/1997 12/6/1999 9/1/2002 5/28/2005 2/22/2008 11/18/2010 8/14/2013 5/10/2016 2/4/2019

N
um

be
r o

f C
ol

on
ie

 F
or

m
in

g 
U

ni
ts

/1
00

 m
L 

Sample Date

Fecal_Coliform_NU/100mLs E.coli_NU/100mLs



 
 

Trophic State. The trophic state of a lake helps characterize the level of productivity and the expected life that may 
exist in a lake.  The overall classifications of lakes can help with comparison across lakes as well as from year to year.  
We use Carlson’s Trophic State as it was developed based on lakes similar to those in Indiana.   
 

CARLSON'S TROPHIC STATE INDEX 
 
                                                                                             

                  Oligotrophic         Mesotrophic           Eutrophic         Hypereutrophic    
                                                                                    
          20   25    30    35    40    45     50    55     60   65     70     75    80  
  Trophic State   
      Index      └────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┴────┘                                                                                      
                      15    10  8  7 6   5    4    3      2    1.5    1       0.5      0.3        
  Transparency    
     (Meters)    └─┴────┴──┴─┴─┴──┴───┴───┴─────┴───┴────┴───────┴──────┴────┘                                                                                      
                         0.5     1       2     3  4  5    7    10 15  20   30  40   60 80 100 150  
  Chlorophyll a 
  (ug/L or PPB)  └───┴─────┴─────┴────┴──┴─┴───┴───┴──┴──┴───┴──┴───┴──┴─┴───┘                                                                                         
           
  Total              3      5     7     10    15   20   25  30   40  50  60   80    100   150 
  Phosphorus          
  (ug/L or PPB)  └┴─────┴────┴────┴────┴───┴───┴──┴───┴──┴──┴───┴────┴────┴──┘      

Figure 7.  Carlson's trophic state index. 

Table 6. Characteristics of trophic state categories. 

Classification Transparency Nutrients Algae D.O. Fish 

Oligotrophic clear Low  
TP < 6 µg/L 

few algae Hypo has D.O. can support 
salmonids 
(trout and 
salmon) 

Mesotrophic Less clear Moderate  
TP 10-30 µg/L 

healthy 
populations of 
algae 

Less D.O. in 
hypo 

lack of 
salmonids  

Eutrophic transparency <2 
meters 

High 
TP > 35 µg/L 

abundant algae 
and weeds 

No D.O. in the 
hypo during the 
summer 

Warmwater 
fisheries only.  
Bass may 
dominate. 
 

Hypereutrophic transparency <1 
meter 

extremely high 
TP > 80 µg/L 

thick algal scum 
Dense weeds 

No D.O. in the 
hypo during the 
summer 

Rough 
dominate.  
Summer fish 
kills possible.  

 
 
  



 
 

 
 
We use Riddle Point Carlson TSI scores to look at the historic trend for Lake Lemon demonstrating that the lake is 
generally characterized as eutrophic.  Figures 9-11 illustrate the Carlson TSI historic trends for Secchi disk, total 
phosphorus, and chlorophyll-a.  Overall, a pattern of seasonal variation of lower scores (less eutrophic) in the spring 
and increasing trophic state to eutrophic/hypereutrophic status by late summer. 

 
 
Figure 8.  The 20-year historic trend for Carlson Secchi disk TSI scores.  Orange represents the August samples. The green 
dashed line illustrates the 1-year mean.  The purple dotted line illustrates eutrophic status for the Carlson TSI.   
 

 
 
Figure 9.  The 19-year historic trend for Carlson chlorophyll-a TSI scores.  Most August samples, shown in orange, score 
above the mean for eutrophic status.  The 19-year mean is just above the Carlson TSI eutrophic status score of 50 (purple 
dotted line). Does not include 2018 data.  

 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

C
ar

ls
on

 T
SI

Carlson Secchi Disk TSI Historic Trend

Eutrophic

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

C
ar

ls
on

 T
SI

Carlson Chl-a TSI Historic Trend

Eutrophic

average 

average 



 
 

 
 
Figure 10.  The 19-year historic trend for Carlson total phosphorus TSI scores.  All August samples, shown in orange, score 
above the mean for eutrophic status.  The green dashed line illustrates the 19-year mean.  The purple dotted line illustrates 
eutrophic status for the Carlson TSI.  Does not include 2018 data. 
 
In July of 2018 due to increased concerns of toxin producing algae samples the LLCD lake manager collected water 
samples at various sites around the lake and IU assessed for toxin producing algae.  IU taxonomist found all samples 
to be below the threshold for recreation advisories of 100,000 cells/mL.  We find the highest cell counts in the 
overflow pond; however, the cell counts in lake samples are similar to the overflow in 2018.  IU will continue to 
monitor these sites this summer and propose further recommendations as needed.  

 
Figure 12.  Sampling locations for the Lake Lemon Water Monitoring Program for the Chitwood area for 2017 and 2018. 

 

Lake Lemon Water Monitoring Conclusions and Recommendations 

 
Further conclusions and recommendations are pending discussion with Lake Manager and Board of Directors.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90
C

ar
ls

on
 T

SI
Carlson TP TSI Historic Trend

Eutrophic



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Adam Casey, District Manager 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject Indiana University Water Testing Agreement for 
2019/2020 

Dollar Amount $10,258.00 Total 
$5,218.00 paid upon acceptance and $5,218.00 paid in 

2020 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019 

Summary Agreement with Indiana University for full parameter 
water testing. This agreement is for a two year term, 

2019 & 2020.  

Staff Recommendation Approval of the 2019/2020 Water Testing Agreement 
with Indiana University. 

 



AGREEMENT 

     between     

INDIANA UNIVERSITY 

         and 

LAKE  LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

This agreement is entered into between the Lake Lemon Conservancy District
(hereinafter referred to as LLCD) and the Trustees of Indiana University (hereinafter
referred to as Indiana).

WHEREAS LLCD seeks assistance in the form of an Agreement to Indiana.

WHEREAS Indiana has proposed to furnish such services to LLCD; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the payments and the
mature agreements of the parties contained, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are incorporated herein and by reference and
subject to the approval of the signature hereto, and the amendments made herein, to with:

Services to Be Provided:

Indiana will provide the following services relative to this Agreement:

Implement the monitoring program as identified in Attachment A.

Term:

The performance of this agreement will commence June 1, 2019 and will terminate on 
December 31, 2020.

Consideration and Payment:

The cost to LLCD for Indiana’s performance of the work described in this Agreement is
$10,258.00.  It is understood that this is fixed-price Agreement.  LLCD will make 
payment to Indiana as follows:

$5,218.00 -upon acceptance of agreement
$2,520.00 -January 1, 2020
$2,520.00 -June 30, 2020



 
Termination: 
 
This agreement may be terminated by either party providing the other party receives 
written notice thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination.  In the event this 
Agreement is terminated prior to the ending date, LLCD will pay Indiana for all costs and 
all non-cancelable commitments incurred up to the date of termination. 
 
Modification: 
 
Any modification to this agreement will be in writing and signed by both LLCD and 
Indiana. 
 
Terms and Conditions:  
 
Authority to Bind Contract:  Both parties hereto: in the performance of this Agreement, 
will be acting in an individual capacity, and not as agents, employees, partners, joint 
ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents or one party shall not be 
deemed or construed to be employees or agents of the other party for any purposes 
whatsoever.  
 
Indemnification:  
 
LLCD will defend, indemnify and hold harmless Indiana, its affiliated hospitals and 
institutes, and their trustees, officers, employees, agents, and third parties acting on 
its/their behalf or with its/their authorization (hereafter collectively referred to as 
“Indemnitees”) from any suit, action, claim, demand, judgment, and expense arising out 
of the performance of this Agreement. LLCD agrees that if any claim is asserted or suit 
brought against Indiana, or their officers, employees, agents, or third parties or their 
employees, LLCD will defend the claim or suit at the expense of LLCD. LLCD will not 
settle or compromise any claim or action in a manner that imposes any restrictions or 
obligations on Indiana without Indiana’s written consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 
LLCD will have no obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Indiana, and its 
officers, employees, agents, and third parties and their employees from claims asserted or 
suits arising out of performance of this Agreement, if it can be shown that the claim or 
suit is based solely on the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Indiana, its officers, 
employees, or agents.  
 
Nondiscrimination:  Pursuant to IC22-9-1-10, Indiana and its subcontractors, if any, shall 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, to be employed in 
the performance of this Agreement, with respect to his/her hire, tenure, conditions or 
privileges of employment, because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, national origin 
or ancestry.  Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of contract. 
 
Maintaining a Drug-Free Workplace:  Indiana hereby covenants and agrees to make a 
good faith effort to provide and maintain during the term of this Agreement a drug free 
workplace, and that it will give written notice to the Indiana Department of Natural 





ATTACHMENT A

Lake Lemon Monitoring Program

2019-2020 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Lake Lemon Conservancy District (LLCD) has entered into a lease agreement with the City of
Bloomington Utilities Service Board (USB) to maintain Lake Lemon in such condition necessary to protect
the lake’s water quality consistent with its potential use as a drinking water source. LLCD also agreed to
maintain the lake in such condition to meet all state and federal requirements for recreational waters and
to maintain the quality of the water in the lake at least at its present level.

The LLCD has requested assistance from the School of Public and Environmental Affairs (SPEA) to provide
long-term monitoring of the lake’s condition. The purpose of this contract is to establish the monitoring
program and fees necessary for LLCD to meet the monitoring requirements of the USB for the years of
2019 through 2020.

2.0 WATER QUALITY SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS 

In-Lake Sampling. Previous studies (Zogorski et al., 1986; Jones and Clemency, 1992) have shown that
water characteristics in Lake Lemon follow typical patterns for run-of-the-river reservoirs. The eastern
end is riverine in nature and is influenced strongly by Beanblossom Creek. The western end is more lake-
like (lacustrine), and the middle is a transitional zone. To characterize these differences, the established
protocol specifies sampling the lake in at least two locations - at mid-lake just east of Reed Point, and near
Riddle Point over the deepest water in the lake. One set of samples will be collected during the spring and
another set during July/August of 2019 and again in 2020.

At each of the two sampling sites, we will collect water samples for the following parameters at one meter
below the surface (epilimnion) and from one meter off the bottom (hypolimnion):

- alkalinity
- pH
- conductivity
- total phosphorus
- soluble reactive phosphorus
- nitrate+nitrite
- ammonia
- total organic nitrogen
- suspended solids

These samples will be placed into an appropriate bottle with preservative (if needed) and stored in an ice 
chest until analysis in SPEA’s laboratory.  



Temperature and dissolved oxygen will be measured at one-meter depth intervals from the surface to the 
bottom at each lake site with a HACH Hydrolab. At each lake site, the following additional collections or 
measurements will be made:  

- Secchi disk transparency  
- determination of the one percent light level (Beckman Enviroeye)  
- chlorophyll a (in epilimnion only; filtered in the field and stored on ice)  
- zooplankton genera density (tow from the 1% light level with a 55 micron net) 
- phytoplankton genera density (2 meter integrated sample)  
- E. coli bacteria (from epilimnion only)  

 
Results from the lake analyses will be used to calculate the Carlson Trophic State Index according to IDEM
guidelines. The trophic state index is a useful tool for tracking water quality changes over time. All analyses 
will be conducted using methods consistent with Standard Methods for the Examination of Waters and 
Wastewater, 20th Edition (APHA, 2005). An Alpkem FLOW SOLUTION autoanalyzer (Model 3570) will be
used to analyze nitrate, ammonia, organic nitrogen and total phosphorus. A QA/QC plan is available for 
the SPEA limnology lab.

Additional lake samples for E. coli bacteria will be collected on both sampling dates in and around the
Chitwood  Addition  at  the  southeast corner  of  Lake  Lemon.  This  area  has  had  high  historical  bacteria 
counts.

Overflow Lake Sampling.  Lake Lemon has a history of eutrophic lake conditions and a legacy of nutrient 
rich sediments within the lake in addition to the annual watershed load. The most eastern overflow pond
had  an  unexpected  algal  bloom  of Cylindrospermopsis that  resulted  in  much  concern  within  the  lake 
community.   We  will  sample  this  water  body  to  monitor  the  development  of  such  a  bloom  again  this 
summer.  Surface phytoplankton grab samples will be collected from the road access point.  Samples will
be enumerated in the SPEA limnology lab.

Stream Sampling. Because Lake Lemon’s condition is heavily influenced by runoff from its watershed, it 
is also important to monitor the main inlet to the lake - Beanblossom Creek. Up to 80% of the annual
sediment  and  nutrient  load  into  a  lake  comes  during  the  4-5  largest  runoff  events.  Therefore,  we  will 
sample Beanblossom Creek in the spring and summer of 2019 and 2020 during runoff events, if possible, 
at  one  location  at  mid-depth  near  its  discharge point  to  the  lake.  The  following  parameters  will  be
measured:  temperature,  dissolved  oxygen,  pH,  alkalinity,  conductivity, SRP,  total  phosphorus, 
nitrate+nitrite, ammonia, organic nitrogen, total suspended solids, and E. coli bacteria, during base flow.

Furthermore,  we  will  sample  Bear  Creek,  near  its  confluence  with  Beanblossom  Creek  and  lower 
Beanblossom  Creek,  for  E.  coli  bacteria  and  total suspended  solids.  We  will  also  sample  the  small
tributary/ditch that flows through the trailer park on North Shore Drive just north of the marina for E. coli 
bacteria.   These  two  additional  tributary  sites  will  be  sampled  on  the  regularly  scheduled  spring  and 
summer sampling events and during the storm event. Due to historical elevated bacteria counts at all
these stream sites, the small ephemeral stream flowing north into the Chitwood Addition will be sampled



during a storm event.  This sampling effort will help determine the source of bacteria in the Chitwood
Addition.

3.0 PRODUCTS PRODUCED

SPEA will prepare an annual written summary documenting the results of the monitoring efforts for each
year. The report will include a determination of the Carlson Trophic State Index for each lake site and for
each sampling date. All data will be included in tables and interesting trends will also be displayed in
graphs. SPEA will compile a two year summary report that compile historic data and long term trends.
The current year’s data will be compared to historical data to assess relative changes in the lake.

SPEA will also be available to present its report and answer questions to the Lake Lemon Conservancy
District Board.

4.0 CAPABILITIES AND QUALIFICATIONS

Melissa Clark, School of Public and Environmental Affairs, Indiana University
Limnologist, Director of the Indiana Clean Lakes Program, Certified Lake Professional
Melissa has managed the SPEA Limnology Laboratory for the last 16 years.  Taking on the full direction of
the lab in 2011, Melissa continues to manage the Indiana Clean Lakes Program, various Lake and River
Enhancement projects, and monitoring Lake Lemon Water Conservancy District.  Melissa has also been
part of the SPEA faculty since 2000 (Senior Lecturer).  She teaches Limnology, Lake and Watershed
Management, Water Resources, Aquatic Habitat Analysis, Environmental Sustainability among others.
For the Limnology Laboratory she is responsible for training all graduate students employed on all
laboratory projects for field and laboratory methods.  Melissa maintains and operates all analytical
instruments and insures laboratory Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) that meet the
requirements of the U.S. EPA and IDEM.  With our rigid quality control and chain-of-custody project
samples never leave their hands.  They never deliver samples to a contract lab (expect E. coli for distant
contracts).  Melissa and the Limnology Laboratory are responsible for water quality sampling, conducting
biological and physical habitat assessments.  The Limnology Laboratory then processes and analyzes all
samples for report writing.

Sarah Powers, School of Public and Environmental Affairs, Indiana University
Limnologist, Laboratory Manager & Research Associate, Citizen Science Coordinator
Sarah now manages the SPEA Limnology Laboratory with Melissa Clark assuming the directorship of the
Indiana Clean Lakes Program (CLP).  Sarah maintains and operates all analytical instruments and insures
laboratory Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) that meet the requirements of the U.S. EPA and
IDEM.  She prepares Quality Control samples, compiles QA/QC results and performs corrective action
when necessary.  Another large portion of Sarah’s CLP responsibilities focuses on the citizen lake water
monitoring.  Currently, Sarah coordinates with ~80 volunteers around the state.  In the past 5 years, Sarah
has worked to expand the current program to include mapping and early detection of invasive species.
Sarah continues to conduct workshops throughout the state preparing volunteers for invasive species
surveys.  In addition to laboratory work and lake stewardship, Sarah takes on the Adjunct Faculty role at
SPEA where she teaches Introduction to Environmental Science and Techniques in Environmental Science.

Qualified graduate students from SPEA’s Master of Science in Environmental Science Program will assist
with the collection and analysis of samples collected under this contract.



 
5.0 REFERENCES CITED  

APHA. 2000. Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater,  20th edition. American 
Public Health Association, Washington, D.C.  

 
Jones, W.W. and L. Clemency. 1992. Lake Lemon T by 2000 Feasibility Study. School of  Public and 

Environmental Affairs, Indiana University, Bloomington.  
 
Zogorski, J.S., W.W. Jones, and nine others. 1986. Lake Lemon Diagnostic/Feasibility Study.  School of 

Public and Environmental Affairs, Indiana University, Bloomington, Indiana. 



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Review  

Item/Subject April, 2019 Financial Update  

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019  

Summary Financial report showing end of April 2019 Balance 
sheet, income, expense and comparison to April 2018 

 

Staff Recommendation N/A  

 





















Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Review  

Item/Subject May, 2019 Financial Update  

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019  

Summary Financial report showing end of May 2019 Balance 
sheet, income, expense and comparison to March 2018 

 

Staff Recommendation N/A  

 























Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject Report of Claims Approval for April 2019  

Dollar Amount $39,894.12 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019  

Summary Report showing check detail and payroll expenditures 
for April 2019.

 

Staff Recommendation Approval of the April 2019 Report of 
Claims

 

 





Dirt Hauling
Stone

Hydraulic Hose and Fittings

Dam Inspection



Equipment Hauling Excavator and Dozer

Withholdings From Employee pay

Hard-line Hydraulic hose replacement 



Total: $29,831.60

A20-PushBoat- Drive shaft Bearing and Stuffing box
Curry Auto- GMC transfer case repair

Staples-Printer Toner
Oakwood- Indiana Lakes Manage Conference

Fuses for GMC







Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject Report of Claims Approval for May 2019  

Dollar Amount $34,483.85 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019  

Summary Report showing check detail and payroll expenditures 
for May 2019.

 

Staff Recommendation Approval of the May 2019 Report of 
Claims

 

 





Chain hooks, Boomers, Bolts

Sediment Transport Study

Communications regarding Bonds

Komatsu welding and stick repair



Pass sales commission 

Rural King-Cable, Generator, Oil
Pomp's tire-Dually repairs

Amazon- Cable and Clamps for channel markers
Kens westside- equipment hauling

Pine Grove marine- Oil and filters for small barge motors



Total: $21,433.92

Blue Chip technologies-Push Boat drive shaft

Dozer work

Receipt Books

Safety Buoys

Sediment Transport Study









Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject Introduction: 2020 Proposed Budget 

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019 

Summary Introduction to the 2020 budget as proposed by the 
Budget Committee.  

Staff Recommendation Review and discussion  

 



Account # Description 2020 Budget 2019 Approved 2018 Budget 2018 Actual
4000 Watercraft Permits 115000 115,000 115,000.00 108,356.00
4010 Launch Fees 21000 21000 22,000.00 20,987.00
4020 Marina & Club Fees 9000 9000 9,000.00 8,499.00
4030 Sublease Fees 27000 27000 27,000.00 26,830.00
4040 Property Tax - BC 82420 82420 65,000.00 62,678.69
4050 Property Tax - MC 234580 234580 185,000.00 188,560.14
4060 Interest 1250 1250 1,250.00 1,413.97
4070 Grants & Donations 12000 7000 7,000.00 13,305.00
4071 Community Foundation 0
4080 Fish Tournaments 1500 1500 1,400.00 4,360.00

4090 Park/Lake Reservations 4000 4000 4,000.00 3,300.00

4100 Park Admission Fees 44000 40000 40,000.00 46,338.00
4110 Concessions 0 1000 1,000.00 0.00
4120 Other 0 0 0.00 0.00
4130 Dredging/Rip-Rap Income 30000 20000 20,000.00 21,988.85

Sediment Removal
Bond Loan Proceeds 1000000 1000000 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 1,581,750.00 1,563,750.00 497,650.00 506,616.65

2019  Budget 

REVENUES

4140



Account # 2020 Budget 2019 Approved 2018 Budget 2018 Actual

6000 District Manager 62,000 59800 52,000.00 52,000.00
6001 Park Operations Supervisor 36,050 35000 41,000.00 0.00
6002 Equipment Operations Supervisor 40,000
6010 FICA (7.65%--all staff) 13700 13700 13,500.00 11,872.61
6020 SUTA (1.236% to 9.5K--all staff) 800 800 800.00 348.62
6030 PERF (14.2%) 15200 14000 15,000.00 8,480.00
6040 Health Insurance 15000 6000 10,000.00 5,167.93
6050 Life Insurance 0 0 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 182,750.00 129,300.00 132,300.00 77,869.16

Gate / Park Attendants
(1909 hrs @ $11.50/hr) 22000 21000 21,000.00 24,734.40

Lake Patrol
(167 hrs @ $12.00/hr) 2000 4800 4,800.00 568.00

Lake Biologist
(1600 hrs @ $17.00/hr) 0 0 0.00 15,598.39

Dredger
(LLCD Dredging)

(600 hrs @ $39.00/hr) 0 23400 23,100.00 17,633.00
Dredger
(Other)

6112 (375 hrs @ $39.00/hr) 0 14625 14,500.00 16,404.63
Push Boat Operator

(LLCD Dredging)

6113 (600 hrs @ $20.00/hr) 12000 12000 11,400.00 15,177.00
Push Boat Operator

(Other)

6114 (300 hrs @ $20.00/hr) 6000 6000 5,700.00 7,915.00
Dredger
(Private)

6115 (100 hrs @ $39.00/hr) 0 3900 3,850.00 3,465.00
Push Boat Operator

(Private)

6116 (100 hrs @ $20.00/hr) 2000 2000 1,900.00 1,702.00

TOTAL 44,000.00 87,725.00 86,250.00 103,197.42

GRAND TOTAL WAGES 226,750.00 217,025.00 218,550.00 181,066.58

Hourly & Seasonal

2019  Budget

WAGES

6111

6110

6100

6070

Salaries & Benefits



Account # Description 2020 Budget 2019 Approved 2018 Budget 2018 Actual
Office Supplies

6025 Merchant Fees 1200 1200
6120 Season & Launch Permits 2000 2000 1,700.00 1,949.80
6130 Daily Permits 400 400 400.00 270.00
6140 Receipt/Ticket Books 400 400 400.00 440.49
6150 Checks 200 200 200.00 99.90
6160 Printer, Copier, Computer 800 800 800.00 286.23
6170 Miscellaneous/Other 1300 1300 1,300.00 1,727.23
6180 Postage 750 750 750.00 854.02
6185 Receipt Books 0 0 0.00 741.39
6190 General Business Supplies 750 750 750.00 1,335.57

TOTAL 7,800.00 7,800.00 6,300.00 7,704.63

6200 Regular Gas 7000 6000 6,000.00 5,355.46
6210 Diesel, Oil, Grease 9000 7000 7,000.00 12,702.02
6220 Janitorial 0 0 0.00 0.00
6230 Medical 0 0 3,000.00 2,949.97

TOTAL 16,000.00 13,000.00 16,000.00 21,007.45

6240 Building & Grounds 6000 6000 5,000.00 2,311.61
6250 Boats, Trucks 1500 1500 1,500.00 414.76
6251 Dredging Supplies 12000 12000 12,000.00 9,945.98
6252 Rip Rap/ Erosion Control 15000 15000 15,000.00 16,143.70

TOTAL 34,500.00 34,500.00 33,500.00 28,816.05

6260 Uniforms 600 200 200.00 569.53
6270 Boat Equipment 0 0 0.00 0.00
6280 Radios 0 1000 0.00 0.00
6290 Signs/Nautical Markers 3000 2500 3,500.00 4,362.49

TOTAL 3,600.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 4,932.02

GRAND TOTAL SUPPLIES 61,900.00 59,000.00 59,500.00 62,460.15

2019 Budget

SUPPLIES

Other Supplies

Operating Supplies

Repair & Maintenance Supplies



Account # Description 2020 Budget 2019 Approved 2018 Budget 2018 Actual

6300 Accounting Services 5400 5400 5400 5400

6310 Grass Mowing 15000 10560 10560 10560

6320 Attorney 4000 4000 4000 1627.5

6325 Fish Management Survey 0 0 0 4000

6330 Consulting Engineers $50,000 $50,000 50000 41424.21

TOTAL 74,400.00 69,960.00 69,960.00 63,011.71

6350 Other Professional/Secretarial Services 1000 1000 1000 921

6370 Phone, LDT, Email, etc. 3000 3000 2900 3386.61

6380 Travel 0 0 0 0

6390 Hotel 300 300 300 636

6400 Meals 150 150 150 195.05

6410 Subscriptions/Memberships 800 800 350 541.99

TOTAL 5,250.00 5,250.00 4,700.00 5,680.65

6420 Newsletter 600 600 0 714

6430 Ads(legal notices) 500 500 500 86

6440 Other Printing 1500 1500 1000 600.6

6441 Event Planing 1500

TOTAL 4,100.00 2,600.00 1,500.00 1,400.60

6450 Insurance 45000 45000 45000 44669.1

TOTAL 45,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 44,669.10

6460 Electric 5000 5000 5000 5545.4

6470 Water 750 750 750 671.51

6480 Trash 1500 1500 1500 1538.3

6490 Port-o-lets 2000 2000 2000 360

6500 Pump Holding Tank 800 800 800 500

TOTAL 10,050.00 10,050.00 10,050.00 8,615.21

Insurance

Utility Services

Professional Services

2019  Budget

SERVICES & CHARGES

Communication/Transportation

Printing/Advertising/Events



Account # Description 2020 Budget 2019 Proposed 2018 Budget 2018 Actual

6510 Building & Grounds/ADA 10,000 15500 5,500.00 8,754.69

6520 Boats 2000 2000 3,000.00 2,645.14

6530 Trucks 1000 1000 1,000.00 41.99

6540 Sluice Gate Inspection 0 0 0.00 0.00

6541 Dredging Equipment Repairs 10000 10000 15,000.00 1,836.59

6542 Equipment Rental 7500 5000 17,000.00 5,074.00

TOTAL 30,500.00 33,500.00 41,500.00 18,352.41

6560 Water Testing 6500 6500 5,500.00 5,771.00

6570 Lake Weed Treatment 50000 50000 50,000.00 36,891.60

6580 Erosion Control 0 0 0.00 0.00

6590 Contingency Fund 10% 5000 5000 5,000.00 0.00

6600 6% Commission-Marina Sales 2300 2300 2,300.00 2,131.20

6610 Cumulative Maintenance Fund 7500 5000 5,000.00 0.00

6620 Dam/Spillway Inspection 0 5000 0.00 0.00

6630 Dam/Spillway Repairs 5000 0 10,000.00 0.00

6640 Soil Testing (IDEM) 0 0 0.00 0.00

6650 Pre-sediment Management Plan 0 10,000 0.00 0.00

6661 Disposal Site Preparation 15000 10000 10,000.00 3,364.21

6662 Debt Service- Bond repayment 67000 67,000.00 0.00 0.00

Silt Container, Barge Assembly,

,Barge Mobilization 0 0 0.00 0.00

6670 Interest Expense (Line of Credit) 0 0 0.00 0.00

6680

Other Servies and Charges          (Debris 

Removal) 1500 1500 1,000.00 1,383.17

6681 Fireworks 8000 6500 6,500.00 6,500.00

6682 Ramp Repairs 2000 2000 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 169,800.00 170,800.00 95,300.00 56,041.18

GRAND TOTAL SERVICES AND CHARGES 339,100.00 337,160.00 268,010.00 197,770.86

Other Services & Charges

6663

Repair & Maintenance

2019 Proposed Budget

SERVICES & CHARGES (Continued)



Account # Description 2020 Budget 2019 Approved 2018 Proposed 2018 Actual

6690 Office Equipment 0 0 0.00 0.00
6700 Computer Equipment 0 0 0.00 1299.94
6701 Barge 0 0 0.00 0.00
6702 Push Boat / Motors 0 0 0.00 0.00
6703 Excavator & Buckets 0 0 0.00 0.00
6704 Off Road Truck 0 0 0.00 0.00
6705 Utility Truck 0 0 0.00 0.00
6706 Bulldozer 0 0 0.00 0.00
6710 Boat Dock (2) 0 0 0.00 0.00
6720 Utility Vehicle 0 0 0.00 0.00
6730 Patrol Boat 0 0 0.00 0.00
6740 Work Boat (Pontoon) 0 0 0.00 0.00
6750 Sediment Mitigation 950,000 950,000 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 950000.00 950000.00 0.00 1299.94

6730 Patrol Boat/Trailer 0 0 0.00 0.00
6770 LLCD Pick-up Truck 0 0 0.00 0.00
6780 Gatehouse 30000

TOTAL 30000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
980000.00 950000.00 0.00 1299.94

1,607,750.00 1,563,185.00 546,060.00 442,597.53

Excess Expenditures over Revenue

2018 Budgeted
1,581,750.00 1,563,750.00 497,650.00 506,616.65
1,607,750.00 1,563,185.00 546,060.00 442,597.53
-26,000.00 565.00 -48,410.00 64,019.12

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BUDGET

2019Budget

CAPITAL

Revenues
Expenses

Net

GRAND TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SUMMARY-2019 Budget

Machinery and Equipment

Other Capital Outlays



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Adam Casey, District Manager 

Action Requested Discussion 

Item/Subject Bond Financial Impact Report 

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019 

Summary Report showing financial impact on freeholders and 
conservancy, for the issuance of bonds, to cover the 

cost of the Sediment Management Project. 

Staff Recommendation Discussion 

 



(~ bakertitty

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC
8365 Keystone Crossing, Ste 300
Indianapolis, IN 46240
United States of America

T: +1(317)4651500
F: +1(317)465 1550
bakertilly.com

The attached schedules listed below present unaudited and limited information for the purpose of discussion and
consideration in the preliminary planning stage of a bond issue by the appropriate officers, officials and advisors
of the Lake Lemon Conservancy District. The use of these schedules should be restricted to this purpose, for
internal use only, as the information is subject to future revision and final report.

Pages

Schedule of Estimated Project Costs and Funding - SRF
Estimated Annual Debt Service - SRF
Estimated Property Tax Rates - SRF
Schedule of Estimated Project Costs and Funding — Open Market
Estimated Annual Debt Service — Open Market
Estimated Property Tax Rates — Open Market
Estimated Annual Taxpayer Impact
2019 Budget Summary
2019 Detailed Budget Expenses
Schedule of Asset Replacement

BAKER TILLY MUN AL ADVISORS, LLC

Dou~~aldessari, Partner

April 22, 2018

Board of Directors
District manager
Lake Lemon Conservancy District
7599 North Tunnel Road
Unionville, In 47468

Dear Members of the Board:

MUNICIPAL
ADVISORS

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10—12
13

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is a registered municipal advisor and wholly-owned subsidiary of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, an
accounting firm. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd.,
the members of which are separate and independent legal entities. © 2019 Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC



SRF
SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS AND FUNDING

(Per Consulting Engineers)

Phase I Phase I & II

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS

Estimated Construction Costs & Contingencies (1) $1,000,000 $2,900,000

Engineering costs, wetland delineation, survey,
   bathometric survey and permitting costs (2) 150,000 435,000

Allowance for costs of issuance and project contingencies 125,000 125,000

Total Estimated Project Costs $1,275,000 $3,460,000

ESTIMATED PROJECT FUNDING

Proposed 2019 Bonds $1,275,000 $3,460,000

(1) Includes a 30% construction contingency.
(2) Estimated at 15% of the construction costs.

(Internal Use Only)

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )
(Preliminary - Subject to Change)

2



SRF

Phase I Phase I & II

Estimated bond principal (1) $1,275,000 $3,460,000

Assumed interest rate 3.65% 3.65%

Assumed years of principal payments 20 20

Estimated average semiannual
     payment (2) 45,200 122,640

Estimated average annual
     payment (3) $90,400 $245,280

(1)  See page 2.
(2)  Assumes principal and interest are paid semi-annually.
(3)  Represents estimated annual payment amount.

ESTIMATED ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

(Internal Use Only)
(Preliminary - Subject to Change)

3

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )



SRF

Phase I Phase I & II

Estimated Annual Debt Service (1) $90,400 $245,280

Less allowance for license excise/
     financial institutions tax (5%) (4,520) (12,260)

Estimated net property tax levy $85,880 $233,020

Total estimated debt service tax rate
     per $100 of net assessed value (2) $0.0646 $0.1753

Less debt service tax rate 
    previsouly adopted ($0.0504) ($0.0504)

Estimated debt service tax rate increase
     per $100 of net assessed value (2) $0.0142 $0.1249

(1)  See page 3.
(2)  Based on the pay 2019 certified net assessed value for the District of $132,941,000.

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

4

(Internal Use Only)
(Preliminary - Subject to Change)

ESTIMATED PROPERTY TAX RATES

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )



Open Market
SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS AND FUNDING

(Per Consulting Engineers)

Phase I Phase I & II

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS

Estimated Construction Costs & Contingencies (1) $1,000,000 $2,900,000

Engineering costs, wetland delineation, survey,
   bathometric survey and permitting costs (2) 150,000 435,000

Allowance for underwriting fees 13,150 35,250

Allowance for costs of issuance and project contingencies 151,850 154,750

Total Estimated Project Costs $1,315,000 $3,525,000

ESTIMATED PROJECT FUNDING

Proposed 2019 Bonds $1,315,000 $3,525,000

(1) Includes a 30% construction contingency.
(2) Estimated at 15% of the construction costs.

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )
(Preliminary - Subject to Change)

5

(Internal Use Only)



Open Market

Phase I Phase I & II

Estimated bond principal (1) $1,315,000 $3,525,000

Assumed interest rate 4.25% 4.25%

Assumed years of principal payments 20 20

Estimated average semiannual
     payment (2) 49,140 131,710

Estimated average annual
     payment (3) $98,280 $263,420

(1)  See page 5.
(2)  Assumes principal and interest are paid semi-annually.
(2)  Represents estimated annual payment amount.

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

ESTIMATED ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

(Preliminary - Subject to Change)
(Internal Use Only)

6

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )



Open Market

Phase I Phase I & II

Estimated Annual Debt Service (1) $98,280 $263,420

Less allowance for license excise/
     financial institutions tax (5%) (4,910) (13,170)

Estimated net property tax levy $93,370 $250,250

Estimated debt service tax rate
     per $100 of net assessed value (2) $0.0702 $0.1882

Less debt service tax rate 
    previsouly adopted ($0.0504) ($0.0504)

Estimated debt service tax rate increase
     per $100 of net assessed value (2) $0.0198 $0.1378

(1)  See page 6.
(2)  Based on the pay 2019 certified net assessed value for the District of $132,941,000.

7

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

ESTIMATED PROPERTY TAX RATES

(Preliminary - Subject to Change)
(Internal Use Only)



LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAXPAYER IMPACT

Estimated
Project Debt Service $100,000 $250,000 $500,000 $750,000 $100,000 $250,000 $500,000 $750,000
Option Tax Rate Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value

SRF - Ph I $0.0646 $21.16 $84.14 $189.12 $300.87 $64.60 $161.50 $323.00 $484.50

SRF - Ph I & II $0.1753 $57.41 $228.33 $513.19 $816.46 $175.30 $438.25 $876.50 $1,314.75

OM - Ph I $0.0702 $22.99 $91.44 $205.51 $326.96 $70.20 $175.50 $351.00 $526.50

OM - Ph I & II $0.1882 $61.64 $245.13 $550.96 $876.54 $188.20 $470.50 $941.00 $1,411.50

Estimated
Project Debt Service $100,000 $250,000 $500,000 $750,000 $100,000 $250,000 $500,000 $750,000
Option Tax Rate Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value Home Value

SRF - Ph I $0.0142 $4.65 $18.50 $41.57 $66.14 $14.20 $35.50 $71.00 $106.50

SRF - Ph I & II $0.1249 $40.90 $162.68 $365.64 $581.72 $124.90 $312.25 $624.50 $936.75

OM - Ph I $0.0198 $6.48 $25.79 $57.96 $92.22 $19.80 $49.50 $99.00 $148.50

OM - Ph I & II $0.1378 $45.13 $179.48 $403.41 $641.80 $137.80 $344.50 $689.00 $1,033.50

(1)  Assumes home value is equal to gross assessed value.
(2)  Includes standard deduction at the lesser of $45,000 or 60% of home value, the 35%
       supplemental homestead deduction and the $3,000 mortgage deduction.
(3)  Assumes property is not the primary residence and residential deductions do not apply.

(Subject to the attached letter dated April 22, 2019 )
(Preliminary - Subject to Change)

(Internal Use Only)

8

Primary Owner Residence (2)

Primary Owner Residence (2) Non-Primary Owner Occupied (3)
Estimated Additional Annual Debt Service Property Tax Liability (1)

Non-Primary Owner Occupied (3)

Estimated Total Annual Debt Service Property Tax Liability (1)



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mary Jane Brown, Vice-Chairman 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject Capital Campaign Training Agreement with Johnson, 
Grossnickel and Associates  

Dollar Amount $4,000.00 

Meeting Date June 22, 2019 

Summary Agreement for the review of current research files; half 
day campaign training, and development of campaign 

next steps timeline   

Staff Recommendation Approval 

 





Rights and Conditions 

1. The terms of this proposal expire on July 1, 2019. 

2. At no time will JGA act as a paid solicitor for Lake Lemon Conservancy District. At no time will JGA 
have custody of contributions designated for Lake Lemon Conservancy District. 

3. Either party may terminate the agreement with or without due cause upon 20 days' written notice. 
No additional fee payments beyond any that have been issued prior to the date of notification shall 
be due, and JGA's expenses shall be reimbursed as of the date of termination. 

4. JGA would be prepared to assist Lake Lemon Conservancy District with the next phase of work, if 
recommended. Lake Lemon Conservancy District is under no obligation to retain the firm for any 
work subsequent to this agreement. 

5. Neither party may hire a development staff employee of the other until 12 months after the end of 
the engagement. 

6. Neither party to this agreement shall be responsible for the negligent acts, omissions or commissions of 
the directors, trustees, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers of the other party. 

7. Lake Lemon Conservancy District, its successors and assigns, agree to indemnify and hold harmless 
JGA, its successors and assigns, from any claims, costs, and expenses arising from or attributable to 
any acts or omissions of the agents, contractors, or employees of Lake Lemon Conservancy District 
in performing its obligations under this agreement. 

8. JGA, its successors and assigns, agree to indemnify and hold harmless Lake Lemon Conservancy 
District, its successors and assigns, from any claims, costs, and expenses arising from or attributable 
to any acts or omissions of the agents, contractors, or employees of JGA in performing its 
obligations under this agreement. 

9. JGA will act as an independent contractor in the performance of its duties under this agreement. All 
personnel and staff provided by JGA shall be considered its employees or agents. 

10. Subject to any applicable state and federal laws for a political subdivision, all material produced 
during this project is the sole and confidential property of Lake Lemon Conservancy District. JGA 
may retain confidential copies of material related to this project in its office records, but shall not 
use, reproduce or distribute such materials to any third party without the expressed written consent 
of Lake Lemon Conservancy District. 

11. Each party to this agreement agrees to: 

a. comply with all state and federal laws applicable to that party that regulate professional 
fundraising and associated consulting, and charitable appeals and solicitations in each 
applicable jurisdiction, including but not limited to, registering, when required, with each 
respective state government agency that regulates professional fundraising and associated 
consulting and charitable appeals and solicitations, and maintaining such registrations in good 
standing. 

b. notify the other party of all states in which it is registered and of any adverse actions or 
developments that may arise regarding such registrations. 

c. keep the other party informed with respect to each jurisdiction where this agreement is filed 
pursuant to its professional fundraising or charitable registration requirements. 

12. A copy of this fully executed agreement will be filed with the Office of the Attorney General of the 
State of Indiana and each necessary government office pursuant to applicable state statute. JGA 
must receive the executed agreement two (2) weeks in advance of the anticipated start date in 
order to file the agreement with the government office(s). In the event that JGA does not receive 
the executed agreement two (2) weeks in advance of the anticipated start date, JGA will not 
commence providing its services with respect to any specific jurisdiction until it has filed all 



documentation required by that specific jurisdiction. 




